
                
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Council Chambers 
                                                                                                          401 E Third Street 

Kewanee, Illinois 61443 
Open Meeting starting at 7:00 p.m. 

Monday, August 9th, 2021 
 

Posted by 6:00 p.m. August 6th, 2021. 
1. Roll Call 
2. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes  
b. Payroll 
c. Staff Reports 
d. Report from Bock, Inc. 

3. Presentation of Bills and Claims 
4. Public Participation 
5. New Business 

a) Presentation from Leann Courson and Stacy Brown of Bridgeway on Results Oriented 
System of Care. 

b) Presentation from Mike Saponaro of Bi-State Regional Planning Commission on OSLAD and 
SRTS grants 

c) Consideration of Resolution # 5288 to approve an application for the City’s Infill 
Development Program.   

d) Consideration of  Resolution # 5289 authorizing the City Manager or his designee to execute 
documents that are necessary for the acquisition and financing of a new ambulance. 

e) Consideration of Ordinance # 4066 amending Section 155.070 (B) special uses and 155.071 (B) 
special uses established in the City of Kewanee Code of Ordinances and declaring that this ordinance 
shall be in full force upon publication as required by law. 

f) Consideration of an Ordinance # 4067 amending Section 155.066 (A) permitted uses and Section 
155.070 (A) permitted uses established in the City of Kewanee Code of Ordinances and declaring that this 
ordinance shall be in full force upon publication as required by law. 

g) Electric Vehicle Charging Stations (Discussion only) 
h) Shallow foundations allowed for accessory structures and potential increase in size. 

(Discussion only) 
6. Announcements:  

 
 

7. Adjournment: 

 



 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: August 6, 2021 
From: Gary Bradley, City Manager 
To: Mayor & Council 
RE:       Council Meeting of Monday, August 9, 2021 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AT 6:00 P.M. & REGULAR MEETING AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. Downtown TIF— This is a reminder that Ordinance 4059 established the date for a public 

hearing on amending the boundaries of the Downtown TIF for this Monday, August 9th at 
6:00 P.M.  The Joint Review Board met last week in continuation from its previous meeting 
and found that the City had followed all necessary steps in the process as outlined by the 
TIF Act, that the Plan Requirements have been met and that the Amended Redevelopment 
Project Area and Plan meet the Plan requirements and eligibility criteria.  The JRB report 
follows this memo.     

 
2. Water Tower— The north water tower remains out of service as the contractor sandblasts 

the inside of the tower.  We chose a nice beige color for the inside coating over the options 
of red, blue, black, and gray.  The containment system is being installed which will shroud 
the tank to prevent dust from sand blasting and paint overspray.   

 
3. Audit— Field work for the auditors will begin next week and will still enable them to 

complete the audit in accordance with our previously anticipated schedule.  We expect this 
audit to be smoother in several respects, but also know that in the transition of staff certain 
things were uncovered or brought to light that will negatively impact some of the findings.    

 
4. IEPA Inspection—Every three years the IEPA comes in and performs an inspection of our 

water system.  That inspection was recently completed, and we received a letter from them 
yesterday detailing their findings.  A copy of the letter is included in your packet 
immediately after the Joint Review Board Report.  There were no new findings identified, 
but we believe a few of the findings should have been removed and will note why in our 
response to their letter.   

 
5. OSHA— The City received a letter noting their concerns with certain aspects of our 

operations in Public Works.  We concur with their findings and have taken the necessary 
steps to eliminate unsafe practices from the job site.  There are no fines or penalties 
associated with the notice and OSHA has expressed an appreciation for our willingness to 
address their concerns.    

 
6. ARPA— Randi Haley has completed all necessary steps for us to begin receiving the 

federally provided funding, which should hit our bank account within the next three weeks 
or so.  The additional funding will push us over the threshold for a Single Audit, which 
provides a higher level of scrutiny than the audits we are typically subject to.      



 
 

  

7. EPA— The cleanup crew is on site and has begun removing the piles of junk and debris 
that contained known contaminants.  They are purchasing water from the City to help keep 
dust down and have an air monitoring specialist on site to ensure that the cleanup is not 
spreading contamination to other areas or putting people outside of the project area at risk.  
It’s a small crew that we expect to be on site for a couple of months.   
 

8. Electric Vehicle Charging Stations— There is information in your packet about electric 
vehicle charging stations.  Staff reached out to the provider with stations in Geneseo.  They 
have partnerships with both Casey’s and Walmart, which could come into play in the future 
and were provided site information for the Amtrak Depot, as well.  They indicated that if 
they had any interest in developing a site in Kewanee in 2021 or 2022 they would have 
already been in contact with the City through the Office of the City Manager and suggested 
that we could potentially be a location they look at for 2023 development.   

 
9. Pavement Marking— Staff continues to make progress on pavement markings, focusing 

primarily on the downtown area.  We’re planning to partner with local schools where 
students may have a need for service hours or seek assistance from civic groups or other 
volunteers to make a big push on the painting of curbs in high visibility areas if we are 
unable to complete the project with staff alone.     

 
10. Public Works Operations Manager— Kevin Newton will not be in attendance on 

Monday night due to other commitments.  If you have questions that would be directed 
toward him, we’ll make note of them and get a response as quickly as possible, or you can 
always send an email before or after the meeting. 

 
11. Downtown— Staff is working on short-term and long-term improvements to the 

downtown area, including changes in our approach to how the area is maintained and is 
developing programs that will enable us to partner with organizations to enhance the 
aesthetics in high visibility areas to help improve the vitality of the area.   

 
12. OSLAD— Staff met with one of our consulting engineers and reached out to Bi-State for 

grant writing assistance for the Open Spaces Lands Acquisition and Development (OSLAD) 
program through the Illinois Department of Natural Resources.  The City Manager and 
Mayor also had a conference call with one of the Grant Administrators for the program 
from DNR to review the potential scope of our project and Francis Park and to discuss 
technical aspects of the application that need considered for scoring the application as high 
as possible.  The application is due by September 1st.     

 
13. SRTS— In addition to the OSLAD Program, staff is working with the engineers and Bi-

State on the preparation of a Safe Routes to School Grant (SRTS) that would allow for the 
large-scale improvement of a key corridor of our sidewalk network.  The application is due 
by the end of September.   

 
14. IML— The annual conference is scheduled for September 23-25th. The City will handle 

reservations for those that have indicated they will attend.  If you plan to travel by private 
vehicle rather than by train, please let us know.   



 
 

  

15. School— With schools back in session in less than two weeks, it’s a good time to remind 
everyone driving to be watchful for kids going to and from the various facilities.   

 
16. LMR— We have a labor/management relations meeting scheduled with AFSCME for 

August 12th.  Relations between the bargaining unit and management appear to be 
continually improving and their recent work on the Terry Avenue project shows their 
willingness to expand the value their employees bring to the organization.   

 
17. 911 Board— Chief Welgat was recently selected to serve as the chair of the county-wide 

911 board.  This responsibility will at times require him to be of service to the region as a 
whole instead of just Kewanee, but also helps to ensure that our residents are receiving the 
highest level of service as far as emergency response is concerned.   

 
18. Aeration Tanks— Staff met with CMT and representatives of Bock, Inc. earlier this week 

to discuss the aeration tanks that were part of the original construction of the water plants 
17 years ago.  You may recall that the tanks have developed several pinhole leaks and that 
their costs were considered high when Scott Hinton began looking into their replacement.  
Cost have done nothing but continue to escalate since then, and to a large degree when they 
increase, they do not tend to go all the way back down.  CMT is putting together bid 
specifications for a lined stainless-steel tank.  CMT believes that having thorough water 
quality testing will help to ensure that the best possible liner is used in order to extend the 
life of the next set of tanks and that a routine maintenance cycle that calls for regularly 
lining the tanks will help to make the second set of tanks last far longer than the first set.   

 
19. Tourism Bureau— Unfortunately, the Henry County Tourism Bureau announced earlier 

this week that they would be disbanding.  Some of the information placed the blame for 
such a move squarely on the City of Kewanee.  As I’m sure you recall, the city openly 
stated its willingness to support tourism programs and projects on a case-by-case basis.  In 
the year since the decision was made or 8 months since the official notice was provided to 
the county, we received no proposals or requests for funding.   

 
20. TMHR— The City has partnered with Project Now on a housing rehabilitation project on 

N. Lexington.  A small amount of our funds will cover a portion of the roof replacement, 
because the total project costs exceeded their maximum allowable expense of $45,000.  
This high visibility house adjacent to Baker Park was originally going to be a partnership 
between the City, Project Now, and Rebuilding Together Henry County before the 
pandemic put a halt to such volunteer based efforts.  The roof work is expected to begin 
next week. 

 
21. Project Now— With its mission of fighting poverty throughout the region and considering 

the impact that drug addiction often has in both poverty and cyclical poverty, Project Now 
has been engaged as a potential partner in the efforts to address drug addiction and the lack 
of sober living facilities in the region.  The addition of sober living facilities may be useful 
in the establishment of in-patient medically staffed facilities, which are often a first step in 
the process of ending addiction at the individual level.     
 









































 

The July 26th, 2021, Council Meeting was called to order at 7:01 PM. Four 
members of the City Council were present in Chambers. 
 
The Consent Agenda included the following items:  

a. Approval of Minutes of the July 12th  Meeting.  

b. Payroll for the pay period ending July17th , 2021, in the amount of $200,206.01.    
c. Reports from Police, Community Development, and Bock, Incorporated  

d. Hog days Request 

Motion made by Councilmember Faber to approve consent agenda.  A Seconded 
was made by Councilmember Komnick. No Discussion .  Motion Passed 5-0 

Bills were presented in the amount of $747,784.93.  
Councilmember Komnick moved to approve payment of the bills.  Councilmember 
Baker seconded the motion.  Discussion: Council Member Faber had a question on a 
concrete purchase.  K Newton stepped to explain there are a lot of scenarios when 
purchase concrete…time of delivery and price on that job.       The motion was 
approved 4-0.    
 
Public Comments: NONE 
New Business:   

a) Consideration of a Resolution # 5285 authorizing the Mayor or City Manager to 
execute a facility usage agreement with Kewanee School District #229 
Councilmember Baker moved to approve.  Councilmember Faber 
seconded.  Discussion: Mayor Moore stated the importance of working with both 
school districts.  Motion passed 4-0   

b) Consideration of a Resolution # 5286 authorizing the Mayor or City Manager to 
execute a facility usage agreement with Wethersfield School District #230.  
Councilmember Komnick moved to approve.  Councilmember Faber 
seconded.  Discussion: none    Motion passed 4-0   

c) Consideration of a Resolution # 5287 authorizing the purchase of a 2022 ford 
police interceptor AWD utility from Gustafson ford of Kewanee and declaring that 
this resolution shall be in full force immediately.  Councilmember Baker moved 
to approve.  Councilmember Faber seconded.  Discussion: Mayor Moore 
asked about the extended warranties that vehicle had to offer.  Newton stated 
that was a 5-year bumper to bumper.  Komnick asked how we are doing with 
getting caught up on a rotation for the Police vehicles.  Welgat explained that we 
are still a bit behind with a few cars but has a plan to get that resolved.  Motion 
passed 4-0   

d) Consideration of an Ordinance # 4064 amending chapter 37.02 of the City 
code which establishes unrestricted fund balance regulations and declaring that 
this ordinance shall be in full force upon publication as required by law.  .  
Councilmember Komnick moved to approve.  Councilmember Faber 
seconded.  Discussion: Komnick stated this was pretty word for word from the 



 

discussion in the prior meeting.  Bradley stated that was correct. Mayor Moore 
stated that this has been in the Audit if he has been here.   Motion passed 4-0   

e) Consideration of an Ordinance # 4065 granting a request for variance to 
Jennifer Lang, 311 McKinley Ave. Kewanee, Illinois.  Councilmember Baker 
moved to approve.  Councilmember Faber seconded.  Discussion:  Faber just 
wanted to clarify that Gary Bradley will be doing the inspections for Keith as he is 
an employee and to prevent conflict of interest.  Mayor Moore stated that usually 
he visits the neighbors to check but has not had a chance on this case, but the 
board was unanimous.  Motion passed 4-0   

 
 
 
 

Council Communications:  

• Councilmember Komnick:  Thanked Bradley about the memo regarding the update on 
the Boiler Property.  Keith stepped up to say there was a slight delay.  Keith would be 
keeping them posted.   Komnick wanted to thank Haley on her report.  Very easy to 
read.   Visited Francis Park and it was very nice and quiet and spoke with a couple 
bicyclist and they really enjoyed the park.  Spoke with Bridgeway and  they are willing to 
speak at a council meeting about services they offer to help combat the Meth issue.      

• Councilmember Baker:  Wanted to say what a great idea the Golf Carts are, and he 
has received numerous compliments.  Question is about the age and kids that he has 
seen driving around?  Welgat stated that he would investigate that.  614 N Chestnut is 
not looking that great and Baker has been approached about  buying it.    

• Councilmember Faber: Had a Question for the Chief regarding the release of the 
animals by the Police after hours.  Welgat needed to get back to him on this answer he 
was not aware.  Faber asked to get the Electric Car Charging Stations on the agenda for 
next meeting for discussion only.   

• Councilmember Colomer: Not Present 
• Mayor’s Communications:  

• Mayor Moore:  Condolence to the family of Alice Golby.  She was revered in the 
community.  We have 112 flags so far up in the American Flag Project.  
Overwhelming positive response.  Thanks, you to the KFD on a call in Neponset 
and therefore this agreement is so important to keep and facilitate.    

• Announcements:  None 
• Councilmember  moved to adjourn the meeting.  Councilmember Faber seconded 
the motion. Motion passed 4-0 The meeting adjourned at 7:28 PM  

 



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:53
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557                                   [G/L DATE: 08/06/21]
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   1

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

ACH 080321       BLU06  BLUE LINE LEARNING GROUP LLC            
                                                            BI  06/30/21  08/02/21                                  147940.05
          MANUAL CHECK # ACH 0803 ON 08/02/21     PAID: 147940.05

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 74-14-451       JUNE HEALTH CLAIM      133567.79
                                                3 74-14-451       JUNE HI ADMIN FEE       30842.29
                                                4 74-14-451       JUNE STOP LOSS CR       16470.03-
                                               M  74-00-114       MANUAL POSTING                     147940.05
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                         147940.05   147940.05

109550067Y10X    BLU04  BLUECROSS BLUESHIELD OF ILLINOIS        
                                                            BI  04/06/21  08/02/21                                     627.27
          MANUAL CHECK # 181      ON 08/02/21     PAID:    627.27

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-22-929       PICKERING OVERPMT         627.27
                                               M  01-00-114.3     MANUAL POSTING                        627.27
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            627.27      627.27

19250369Y80X     BLU04  BLUECROSS BLUESHIELD OF ILLINOIS        
                                                            BI  07/14/20  08/02/21                                     599.25
          MANUAL CHECK # 181      ON 08/02/21     PAID:    599.25

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-22-929       WILSON OVERPMT DO         599.25
                                               M  01-00-114.3     MANUAL POSTING                        599.25
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            599.25      599.25

2345008B950X     BLU04  BLUECROSS BLUESHIELD OF ILLINOIS        
                                                            BI  01/26/21  08/02/21                                     538.90
          MANUAL CHECK # 181      ON 08/02/21     PAID:    538.90

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-22-929       CLARK-ROBINSON OV         538.90
                                               M  01-00-114.3     MANUAL POSTING                        538.90
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            538.90      538.90

5949381          CLI02  CLIFTONLARSONALLEN LLP                  
                                                            BI  07/23/21  07/23/21                                    5479.69

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       5479.69
                                                2 01-11-531       FY21 BANK RECS           4218.75
                                                3 11-13-531       FY21 AUDIT PROGRE        1000.00
                                                4 11-13-531       TECH SUPPORT FEE          260.94
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           5479.69     5479.69



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:53
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557                                   [G/L DATE: 08/06/21]
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   2

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

215349 06/14/21  CRA03  CRAWFORD, MURPHY & TILLY                
                                                            BI  06/14/21  06/14/21                                      95.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         95.00
                                                2 32-42-532       AERATION TANK DES          95.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             95.00       95.00

J072821          CRA03  CRAWFORD, MURPHY & TILLY                
                                                            BI  07/23/21  07/23/21                                    3639.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       3639.00
                                                2 44-84E-553      DWTN TIF AMD PUB         3639.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           3639.00     3639.00

84851            GAR05  GARCIA, SAMUEL                          
                                                            BI  12/07/20  12/07/20                                      79.80
          MANUAL CHECK # 182      ON 08/02/21     PAID:     79.80

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-22-929       GARCIA OVERPMT DO          79.80
                                               M  01-00-114.3     MANUAL POSTING                         79.80
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             79.80       79.80

210260AXNR00     HEA12  HEALTH CARE SERVICES CORP               
                                                            BI  07/15/21  07/15/21                                      73.14
          MANUAL CHECK # 180      ON 08/02/21     PAID:     73.14

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-11-929       YEARIAN OVERPMT D          73.14
                                               M  01-00-114.3     MANUAL POSTING                         73.14
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             73.14       73.14

2104800RXM00     HEA12  HEALTH CARE SERVICES CORP               
                                                            BI  07/20/21  07/20/21                                      73.14
          MANUAL CHECK # 180      ON 08/02/21     PAID:     73.14

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-11-929       SIMMONS OVERPMT D          73.14
                                               M  01-00-114.3     MANUAL POSTING                         73.14
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             73.14       73.14

210650BKTR00     HEA12  HEALTH CARE SERVICES CORP               
                                                            BI  07/15/21  07/15/21                                      73.14
          MANUAL CHECK # 180      ON 08/02/21     PAID:     73.14

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-11-929       LOPEZ OVERPMT DOS          73.14
                                               M  01-00-114.3     MANUAL POSTING                         73.14
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             73.14       73.14



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:53
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557                                   [G/L DATE: 08/06/21]
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   3

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

210750ASFJ00     HEA12  HEALTH CARE SERVICES CORP               
                                                            BI  07/17/21  07/17/21                                       7.45
          MANUAL CHECK # 180      ON 08/02/21     PAID:      7.45

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-11-929       YELM OVERPMT DOS            7.45
                                               M  01-00-114.3     MANUAL POSTING                          7.45
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                              7.45        7.45

109-3270         ILL05  ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND      
                                                            BI  07/23/21  08/23/21                                    5117.91
          MANUAL CHECK # ACH0730  ON 07/30/21     PAID:   5117.91

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-41-462       ACCELERATED PMT H        2558.96
                                                3 51-42-462       ACCELERATED PMT H        1023.58
                                                4 52-43-462       ACCELERATED PMT H        1535.37
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                       5117.91
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           5117.91     5117.91

179-8153         ILL05  ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND      
                                                            BI  06/29/21  07/29/21                                   27124.86
          MANUAL CHECK # ACH0730  ON 07/30/21     PAID:  27124.86

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 51-42-462       ACCELERATED PMT P       27124.86
                                               M  51-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                      27124.86
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                          27124.86    27124.86

674535           ILL38  ILLINOIS TAX INCREMENT ASSOCIATION      
                                                            BI  07/01/21  07/01/21                                     650.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        650.00
                                                2 02-61-561       21-22 MEMBERSHIP          650.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            650.00      650.00

                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                               .00         .00

TOTAL NUMBER OF TRANSACTIONS:         15

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE ............  192118.60

TOTAL DEBITS .....  192118.60 
TOTAL CREDITS ....  192118.60

TOTAL OPEN INVOICE AMOUNT ...    9863.69 
TOTAL MANUAL CHECK AMOUNT ...  182254.91 
TOTAL PRINTED CHECK AMOUNT ..        .00



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:53
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557                                   [G/L DATE: 08/06/21]
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   1

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

D112020          KEW64  KEWANEE AUXILIARY POLICE                
                                                            BI  07/29/21  08/09/21                                    1500.00
          MANUAL CHECK # ACH 0809 ON 08/09/21     PAID:   1500.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-21-159.7     4 OFF @ WALMART B        1500.00
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                       1500.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1500.00     1500.00

TOTAL NUMBER OF TRANSACTIONS:          1

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE ............    1500.00

TOTAL DEBITS .....    1500.00 
TOTAL CREDITS ....    1500.00

TOTAL OPEN INVOICE AMOUNT ...        .00 
TOTAL MANUAL CHECK AMOUNT ...    1500.00 
TOTAL PRINTED CHECK AMOUNT ..        .00



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:53
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557                                   [G/L DATE: 08/06/21]
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   1

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

d07282021        CAL07  CALHOUN, JACK                           
                                                            BI  07/28/21  08/09/21                                      35.00
          PRINTED CHECK # 59999    ON 07/28/21    PAID:     35.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-41-455       CDL REIMBURSEMENT          35.00
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                         35.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             35.00       35.00

2876867          CLI02  CLIFTONLARSONALLEN LLP                  
                                                            BI  05/25/21  08/09/21                                     525.00
          PRINTED CHECK # 60011    ON 08/02/21    PAID:    525.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 11-13-531       AUDIT FINANCIALS          525.00
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                        525.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            525.00      525.00

2949381          CLI02  CLIFTONLARSONALLEN LLP                  
                                                            BI  07/23/21  08/09/21                                    5479.69
          PRINTED CHECK # 60012    ON 08/02/21    PAID:   5479.69

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 11-13-531       AUDIT FINANCIALS         5479.69
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                       5479.69
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           5479.69     5479.69

D07142021        COM10  COMCAST CABLE                           
                                                            BI  07/14/21  07/29/21                                     113.35
          PRINTED CHECK # 60006    ON 07/29/21    PAID:    113.35

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 38-71-549       INTERNET DEPOT            113.35
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                        113.35
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            113.35      113.35

NWP072921        COM10  COMCAST CABLE                           
                                                            BI  07/29/21  07/29/21                                     108.35
          PRINTED CHECK # 60002    ON 07/29/21    PAID:    108.35

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 51-93-552       NWTP INTERNET VPN         108.35
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                        108.35
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            108.35      108.35

WP072921         COM10  COMCAST CABLE                           
                                                            BI  07/29/21  07/29/21                                      88.40
          PRINTED CHECK # 60001    ON 07/29/21    PAID:     88.40

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:53
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557                                   [G/L DATE: 08/06/21]
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   2

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

WP072921         COM10  (CONTINUED)
                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 51-93-552       SWTP INTERNET VPN          88.40
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                         88.40
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             88.40       88.40

D07132021        FRO00  FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION     
                                                            BI  07/13/21  07/29/21                                    1641.66
          PRINTED CHECK # 60005    ON 07/29/21    PAID:   1641.66

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-41-552       PW                        185.04
                                                3 54-54-552       PARKS                      38.64
                                                4 01-11-552       F&A                       480.71
                                                5 01-22-552       FIRE                      285.10
                                                6 52-93-552       WWTP                      127.62
                                                7 57-44-552       SANITATION                 45.76
                                                8 51-93-552       WTP                        54.46
                                                9 01-21-552       POLICE                    106.95
                                               10 58-36-552       CEMETERY                  291.18
                                               11 62-45-552       FLEET                      26.20
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                       1641.66
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1641.66     1641.66

D07192021        FRO00  FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION     
                                                            BI  07/19/21  07/29/21                                      46.82
          PRINTED CHECK # 60004    ON 07/29/21    PAID:     46.82

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-22-552       FIRE FAX LINE              46.82
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                         46.82
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             46.82       46.82

D071921          FRO00  FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION     
                                                            BI  07/19/21  07/29/21                                     821.95
          PRINTED CHECK # 60003    ON 07/29/21    PAID:    821.95

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-41-552       PW PHONE                  177.42
                                                3 54-54-552       PARKS                      39.08
                                                4 01-11-552       F&A                       259.39
                                                5 01-22-552       FIRE                       51.02
                                                6 52-93-552       WWTP                      127.34
                                                7 57-44-552       SANITATION                 46.02
                                                8 51-93-552       WTP                        53.75
                                                9 01-21-552       POLICE                     67.93
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                        821.95
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            821.95      821.95

D072921          JOH33  JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL                    
                                                            BI  07/29/21  07/29/21                                     133.56
          PRINTED CHECK # 60009    ON 07/29/21    PAID:    133.56

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:53
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557                                   [G/L DATE: 08/06/21]
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   3

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

D072921          JOH33  (CONTINUED)
                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 58-36-652       CEMETERY SUPPLIES          22.49
                                                3 58-36-612       GATOR BATTERY              51.33
                                                4 58-36-612       MOWER PARTS                59.74
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                        133.56
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            133.56      133.56

D07292021        MUT03  MUTUAL OF OMAHA                         
                                                            BI  07/29/21  07/29/21                                     322.40
          MANUAL CHECK # 1487.0   ON 07/29/21     PAID:    322.40

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 74-14-452       LIFE/AD&D                 322.40
                                               M  74-00-114       MANUAL POSTING                        322.40
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            322.40      322.40

180024           PFP00  PF PETTIBONE & CO                       
                                                            BI  02/23/21  08/08/21                                    1052.35
          PRINTED CHECK # 60013    ON 08/02/21    PAID:   1052.35

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-21-553       TICKET BOOKS             1052.35
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                       1052.35
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1052.35     1052.35

D06012021        RIB00  RIBER, BENNETT                          
                                                            BI  06/01/21  07/29/21                                      14.21
          PRINTED CHECK # 60007    ON 07/29/21    PAID:     14.21

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-22-473       BEDDING                    14.21
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                         14.21
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             14.21       14.21

D08062021        RIV10  RIVERG, KEN                             
                                                            BI  08/06/21  08/09/21                                    1708.00
          PRINTED CHECK # 60025    ON 08/06/21    PAID:   1708.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 38-71-549       POL CONF FLOOR           1708.00
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                       1708.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1708.00     1708.00

D08052021        ROS07  ROSS, DUSTIN                            
                                                            BI  08/05/21  08/09/21                                     932.00
          PRINTED CHECK # 60026    ON 08/06/21    PAID:    932.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:53
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557                                   [G/L DATE: 08/06/21]
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   4

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

D08052021        ROS07  (CONTINUED)
                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 38-71-549       POL CONF FLOOR            932.00
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                        932.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            932.00      932.00

D07132021        SIS01  SISCO                                   
                                                            BI  07/13/21  07/29/21                                     470.15
          MANUAL CHECK # ACH 0713 ON 07/29/21     PAID:    470.15

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 74-14-451       DENTAL/VISION CLA         465.50
                                                3 74-14-451       ID CARDS                    4.65
                                               M  74-00-114       MANUAL POSTING                        470.15
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            470.15      470.15

D07262021        SIS01  SISCO                                   
                                                            BI  07/26/21  07/29/21                                    1160.40
          MANUAL CHECK # ACH 0726 ON 07/29/21     PAID:   1160.40

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 74-14-451       DENTAL VISON CLAI        1160.40
                                               M  74-00-114       MANUAL POSTING                       1160.40
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1160.40     1160.40

D08022021        SIS01  SISCO                                   
                                                            BI  08/03/21  08/03/21                                    3297.11
          MANUAL CHECK # ACH0804  ON 08/03/21     PAID:   3297.11

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 74-14-451       DENTAL/VSION CLAI        3297.11
                                               M  74-00-114       MANUAL POSTING                       3297.11
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           3297.11     3297.11

9884030963       VER06  VERIZON WIRELESS                        
                                                            BI  07/13/21  07/29/21                                     645.17
          PRINTED CHECK # 60008    ON 07/29/21    PAID:    645.17

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-21-552       POLICE CELLULAR           645.17
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                        645.17
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            645.17      645.17

1636710810       WAL09  WALMART                                 
                                                            BI  07/19/21  07/29/21                                     265.15
          PRINTED CHECK # 60000    ON 07/29/21    PAID:    265.15

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:53
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557                                   [G/L DATE: 08/06/21]
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   5

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

1636710810       WAL09  (CONTINUED)
                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 01-22-612       ASPIRIN                    11.36
                                                3 01-22-654       CLEANING SUPPLIES          28.56
                                                4 01-22-652       BATTERIES                  61.22
                                                5 01-22-654       TP                         74.32
                                                6 01-21-651       SUPPLIES                   89.69
                                               M  01-00-114.00    MANUAL POSTING                        265.15
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            265.15      265.15

SI-26283         WER01  WERNER RESTORATION SERVICES             
                                                            BI  07/19/21  07/29/21                                    1040.00
          PRINTED CHECK # 60010    ON 07/29/21    PAID:   1040.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                2 44-84E-890      SAFETY INSTALLATI        1040.00
                                               M  44-00-114.5     MANUAL POSTING                       1040.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1040.00     1040.00

TOTAL NUMBER OF TRANSACTIONS:         21

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE ............   19900.72

TOTAL DEBITS .....   19900.72 
TOTAL CREDITS ....   19900.72

TOTAL OPEN INVOICE AMOUNT ...        .00 
TOTAL MANUAL CHECK AMOUNT ...    5250.06 
TOTAL PRINTED CHECK AMOUNT ..   14650.66



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:52
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   1

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

402              ALL08  ALL SEASONS LAWN CARE                   
                                                            BI  07/06/21  08/06/21                                    2697.71

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       2697.71
                                                2 01-65-549       WEED MOWING CONTR        2697.71
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           2697.71     2697.71

403              ALL08  ALL SEASONS LAWN CARE                   
                                                            BI  08/02/21  08/09/21                                    1603.33

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       1603.33
                                                2 01-65-549       WEED MOWING CONTR        1603.33
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1603.33     1603.33

D07292021        AME29  AMEREN ILLINOIS                         
                                                            BI  07/29/21  08/09/21                                      81.55

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         81.55
                                                2 01-21-539       POUND ELECTRICITY          81.55
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             81.55       81.55

41733            BRE00  BREEDLOVE'S SPORTING GOODS              
                                                            BI  07/08/21  08/06/21                                      35.95

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         35.95
                                                2 01-21-471       CLOTHING ALLOWANC          35.95
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             35.95       35.95

815              BRE00  BREEDLOVE'S SPORTING GOODS              
                                                            BI  07/07/21  08/06/21                                      50.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         50.00
                                                2 01-21-652       VINYL STICKERS             50.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             50.00       50.00

123257           COL14  COLWELL, BRENT                          
                                                            BI  07/12/21  08/06/21                                      50.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         50.00
                                                2 02-61-549       ELECTRICAL INSPEC          50.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             50.00       50.00

123258           COL14  COLWELL, BRENT                          
                                                            BI  07/12/21  08/06/21                                      50.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         50.00
                                                2 02-61-549       ELECTRICAL INSPEC          50.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             50.00       50.00



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:52
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   2

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

123260           COL14  COLWELL, BRENT                          
                                                            BI  07/08/21  08/06/21                                      50.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         50.00
                                                2 02-61-549       ELECTRICAL INSPEC          50.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             50.00       50.00

123262           COL14  COLWELL, BRENT                          
                                                            BI  07/08/21  08/06/21                                      50.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         50.00
                                                2 01-65-549       ELECTRICAL INSPEC          50.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             50.00       50.00

123263           COL14  COLWELL, BRENT                          
                                                            BI  07/26/21  08/09/21                                      25.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         25.00
                                                2 01-65-549       ELECTRICAL INSPEC          25.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             25.00       25.00

123264           COL14  COLWELL, BRENT                          
                                                            BI  07/29/21  08/09/21                                      50.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         50.00
                                                2 01-65-549       ELECTRICAL INSPEC          50.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             50.00       50.00

215805           CRA03  CRAWFORD, MURPHY & TILLY                
                                                            BI  07/15/21  08/06/21                                     617.50

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        617.50
                                                2 51-42-532       AERATION TANKS            617.50
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            617.50      617.50

215855           CRA03  CRAWFORD, MURPHY & TILLY                
                                                            BI  07/19/21  08/06/21                                    1235.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       1235.00
                                                2 52-43-532.4     CHLORIDES                1235.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1235.00     1235.00

D07292021        EDW00  EDWARDS, KEITH                          
                                                            BI  07/29/21  08/09/21                                      68.88

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         68.88
                                                2 01-65-563       TRAINING/TRAVEL            68.88
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             68.88       68.88



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:52
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   3

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

D07272021        GAO00  GAITAN, ELIZABETH                       
                                                            BI  07/27/21  08/06/21                                    2250.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       2250.00
                                                2 02-61-930.3     DEMO GRANT               2250.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           2250.00     2250.00

INV07282021      HEN00  HENRY COUNTY SWCD                       
                                                            BI  07/28/21  08/06/21                                    6458.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       6458.00
                                                2 02-61-913       #6 OF 6 PER IGA          6458.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           6458.00     6458.00

58539            HOD00  HODGE'S 66 INC                          
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/09/21                                     512.50

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        512.50
                                                2 62-45-513       ST 13                     512.50
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            512.50      512.50

130725           IDE03  IDEMIA IDENTITY & SECURITY USA LLC      
                                                            BI  07/02/21  08/06/21                                    2332.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       2332.00
                                                2 01-21-512       ANNUAL MAINT             2332.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           2332.00     2332.00

T2130990         COM06  IDOIT - COMMUNICATIONS REVOLVING FUND   
                                                            BI  07/12/21  08/06/21                                     316.70

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        316.70
                                                2 01-21-552       LEADS LINE                316.70
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            316.70      316.70

23652            JOH00  JOHN'S GLASS SHOP                       
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/09/21                                     248.44

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        248.44
                                                2 62-45-513       FIRE SUV                  248.44
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            248.44      248.44

1151             KIW00  KIWANIS CLUB OF KEWANEE                 
                                                            BI  07/27/21  08/06/21                                     155.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        155.00
                                                2 01-11-561       QRTLY DUES                 16.00
                                                3 01-11-562       SRTLY MEALS               139.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            155.00      155.00



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:52
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   4

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

1219             LAM06  LAMCO                                   
                                                            BI  07/16/21  08/09/21                                    1600.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       1600.00
                                                2 01-41-581       TREE REMOVAL             1600.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1600.00     1600.00

1228             LAM06  LAMCO                                   
                                                            BI  07/20/21  08/09/21                                     800.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        800.00
                                                2 01-41-581       TREE REMOVAL              800.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            800.00      800.00

1229             LAM06  LAMCO                                   
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/09/21                                    1000.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       1000.00
                                                2 01-41-581       TREE REMOVAL             1000.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1000.00     1000.00

1230             LAM06  LAMCO                                   
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/09/21                                    1200.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       1200.00
                                                2 01-41-581       TREE REMOVAL             1200.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1200.00     1200.00

1233             LAM06  LAMCO                                   
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/09/21                                    3400.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       3400.00
                                                2 01-41-581       TREE REMOVAL             3400.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           3400.00     3400.00

1238             LAM06  LAMCO                                   
                                                            BI  07/28/21  08/09/21                                    1800.00

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                       1800.00
                                                2 58-36-581       TREE REMOVAL             1800.00
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                           1800.00     1800.00

D08052021        LEM05  LEMANSKI, KRISTI                        
                                                            BI  08/05/21  08/09/21                                      74.98

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         74.98
                                                2 01-11-471       CLOTHING ALLOWANC          74.98
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             74.98       74.98



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:52
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   5

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

57986            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  05/20/21  08/06/21                                      99.80

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         99.80
                                                2 01-41-614       STREET REPAIRS             99.80
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             99.80       99.80

57990            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  05/20/21  08/06/21                                      71.64

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         71.64
                                                2 01-41-614       STREET REPAIRS             71.64
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             71.64       71.64

57999            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  05/20/21  08/06/21                                     459.69

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        459.69
                                                2 01-41-614       STREET REPAIRS            459.69
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            459.69      459.69

59460            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  06/21/21  08/06/21                                     163.94

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        163.94
                                                2 01-41-652       STREET TOOLS              163.94
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            163.94      163.94

59461            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  06/21/21  08/06/21                                      25.98

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         25.98
                                                2 01-52-652       PARK TRASH BAGS            25.98
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             25.98       25.98

59913            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  06/30/21  08/06/21                                       6.98

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                          6.98
                                                2 62-45-652       SHOP SUPPLIES               6.98
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                              6.98        6.98

59918            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  06/30/21  08/06/21                                      86.58

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         86.58
                                                2 01-41-652       PW SUPPLIES                86.58
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             86.58       86.58



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:52
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   6

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

60455            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  07/12/21  08/06/21                                     439.10

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        439.10
                                                2 52-93-512       PVC/SUPPLIES              439.10
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            439.10      439.10

60640            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  07/16/21  08/06/21                                      11.94

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         11.94
                                                2 52-43-652       SEWER SUPPLIES             11.94
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             11.94       11.94

60647            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  07/16/21  08/06/21                                       4.77

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                          4.77
                                                2 62-45-652       SHOP SUPPLIES               4.77
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                              4.77        4.77

60845            MEN00  MENARD'S                                
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/06/21                                       2.99

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                          2.99
                                                2 51-42-652       PW TOILET HANDLE            2.99
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                              2.99        2.99

K571732          MOO09  MOORE TIRES KEWANEE                     
                                                            BI  07/16/21  08/06/21                                      25.29

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         25.29
                                                2 62-45-513       TRUCK REPAIR               25.29
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             25.29       25.29

K57497           MOO09  MOORE TIRES KEWANEE                     
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/09/21                                      25.29

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         25.29
                                                2 62-45-513       W 28                       25.29
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             25.29       25.29

1143-464095      O'R00  O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES, INC         
                                                            BI  07/20/21  08/09/21                                       6.36

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                          6.36
                                                2 62-45-612       JETTER                      6.36
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                              6.36        6.36



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:52
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   7

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

1143-464098      O'R00  O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES, INC         
                                                            BI  07/20/21  08/09/21                                      47.49

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         47.49
                                                2 62-45-612       JETTER                     47.49
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             47.49       47.49

1143-464170      O'R00  O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES, INC         
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/09/21                                       6.36

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                          6.36
                                                2 62-45-613       FIRE SUV                    6.36
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                              6.36        6.36

1143-464228      O'R00  O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES, INC         
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/09/21                                      70.66

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         70.66
                                                2 62-45-613       FIRE SUV                   70.66
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             70.66       70.66

1102704-1        OFF00  OFFICE SPECIALISTS INC                  
                                                            BI  04/08/21  08/09/21                                      29.64

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                         29.64
                                                2 01-11-651       COPY PAPER                 29.64
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                             29.64       29.64

FB165239         RAC02  RACOM CORPORATION                       
                                                            BI  04/07/21  08/09/21                                     232.14

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        232.14
                                                2 39-73-840       FIRE PICK UP              232.14
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            232.14      232.14

X203034214:01    HAW02  THOMPSON TRUCK & TRAILER, INC           
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/09/21                                     340.84

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        340.84
                                                2 62-45-613       ST 13                     340.84
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            340.84      340.84

D07182021        USC00  U.S. CELLULAR                           
                                                            BI  07/21/21  08/06/21                                     969.21

                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                1                 INVOICE AMOUNT                        969.21
                                                2 01-41-552       PW                        756.04
                                                3 01-11-552       CITY MANAGER               23.78-
                                                4 58-36-552       CEMETERY                   23.99



SYS DATE: 08/06/21                                         CITY OF KEWANEE                                       SYS TIME: 10:52
                                            V E N D O R   I N V O I C E   R E G I S T E R                               [NR1WIN]
                                                           REGISTER # 557
TERM DATE: 08/06/21                                  Friday August 6, 2021                                              PAGE   8

                                                              TR     TR       DATE
INVOICE #   VEND #  NAME                      REFERENCE      CODE   DATE      DUE                                       AMOUNT
===================================================================================================================================

D07182021        USC00  (CONTINUED)
                                              SEQ  G/L ACCT         DESCRIPTION             DEBIT      CREDIT   PROJECT #
                                                5 01-65-552       COMM DEV                   93.45
                                                6 58-36-552       FP WIFI                    23.99
                                                7 54-54-552       CEMETERY HOTSPOT           23.99
                                                8 57-44-552       SANITATION TABLET          13.99
                                                9 62-45-552       FLEET                      57.54
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                            969.21      969.21

                                                                                        ----------  ----------
                                                                                               .00         .00

TOTAL NUMBER OF TRANSACTIONS:         49

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE ............   31939.23

TOTAL DEBITS .....   31939.23 
TOTAL CREDITS ....   31939.23

TOTAL OPEN INVOICE AMOUNT ...   31939.23 
TOTAL MANUAL CHECK AMOUNT ...        .00 
TOTAL PRINTED CHECK AMOUNT ..        .00



Building Permits July 2021

Health - Building - Zoning

Date Bldg. Permit# Permit Issued To Job Address

Job Descrip Est Cost Permit Fee

7/1/2021 B-21-112 Dalton Nuding 510 N Grove

Installation of 6' fence, 70' along the S property line. $900.00 ($20.00)

7/1/2021 B-21-113 Jim Themanson 611 East St S

Construction of handicap ramp, less than 200 sq ft total (permit fees waived for Rebuilding T $700.00 ($10.00)

7/1/2021 B-21-114 Nikolas Vazquez 319 Hollis

PV solar installation, roof mount solar installation. $10,100.00 $80.00

7/7/2021 B-21-115 Randi Chismark 416 N East

Install 15' diameter above ground pool, 36" deep, within existing 4' fence. $350.00 $10.00

7/7/2021 B-21-116 Joseph Dudek 351 E Division

Construction of 10' - 12' metal shed w/ anchors next to garage. $559.00 $10.00

7/7/2021 B-21-117 Jose Rocha 641 N Walnut

Replacing front yard 6' fence w/ 4' wood fence, 56'. Construction of 6' wood fence on side of h $700.00 $40.00

7/8/2021 B-21-118 Mara Ahles-Iverson 306 East St S

Install 6' wood privacy fence on the N/S side, 4' black chain link on the E side for the church p $5,500.00 $20.00

7/8/2021 B-21-119 Robert Barnes 1047 N Main

Install 8' fence to enclose front of property, front of S neighbors porch to garage to drive, repla $4,900.00 ($20.00)

7/9/2021 B-21-120 Sharron Talbot 814 Pine

Install 4' - 5' wire privacy fence and gate in back yard, apprx 12' from alley, apprx 25'. $500.00 $20.00

Wednesday, August 4, 2021 Page 1 of 3



Date Bldg. Permit# Permit Issued To Job Address

Job Descrip Est Cost Permit Fee

7/9/2021 B-21-121 Curt Seei 315 S Tenney

Construction of 7' x 7' (49 sq ft total) shed. $8,000.00 ($10.00)

7/9/2021 B-21-122 Kerry Copeland 324 W Prospect

Construction of 22' x 24' (528 sq ft total) steel building for storage behind house. (Updated siz $9,000.00 $89.00

7/19/2021 B-21-123 Jennifer Lang 311 McKinley

Construction of wood deck on concrete footings, under 200 sq ft total. $1,500.00 $10.00

7/19/2021 B-21-124 Maria Paredes 1011 N Chestnut

Install 6' wood fence, 301' on S side of property. $2,500.00 $20.00

7/19/2021 B-21-125 Christopher Smith 420 E College

Install 6' vinyl fence, appx 164', enclosing back yard from back of house, E & W sides of prop $4,500.00 $20.00

7/20/2021 B-21-126 Ryan Frank 500 W Prospect

Install 4' vinyl picket fence on S & E sides of house, 6" inside City sidewalk. $1,400.00 $20.00

7/20/2021 B-21-127 Tom Kaxubowski 813 Birch

Construction of 24' x 30' (720 sq ft total) garage on concrete slab. $10,000.00 $102.00

7/23/2021 B-21-128 Kami Branom 121 Tenney

Construction of 20' x 24' (480 sq ft total) garage with concrete base. $17,000.00 ($82.50)

7/28/2021 B-21-129 Turnroth Sign Co 250 East St S

Remove existing sign and install electronic message center sign between existing brick colum $26,724.00 $75.00

7/28/2021 B-21-130 Monica Motley 615 William

Installation of 24' x 52" round above ground pool, within existing fence. $5,500.00 $82.50

7/28/2021 B-21-131 Kewanee Pool & Spa 235 W Garfield

Installation of 30' x 52" round above ground pool, no fence/locked ladder. Pool wall to be 48" $8,200.00 $102.00

7/30/2021 B-21-132 Julie Held 511 E 8th

Install 6' chain link fence to enclose back yard. Install 4' deep, 16' round above ground pool be $4,500.00 ($30.00)

Wednesday, August 4, 2021 Page 2 of 3



Date Bldg. Permit# Permit Issued To Job Address

Job Descrip Est Cost Permit Fee

Total Value of Improvements $123,033.00

Total Value of Permit Fees waived for Enterprise Zone
($172.50)

Total Value of other Permit Fees $700.50

Value of improvements in Enterprise Zone $36,000.00

Value of improvements outside the Enterprise Zone $87,033.00

Prepared by: ________________________

Wednesday, August 4, 2021 Page 3 of 3



Electrical Permits July 2021

Health - Building - Zoning

Date Elec Permit# Permit Issued To Job Address

Job Descrip Est Cost Permit Fee

7/1/2021 E-21-046 Nikolas Vazquez 319 Hollis

PV solar installation, roof mount solar installation. $4,107.00 $50.00

7/2/2021 E-21-047 Dustin Blay 157 W South St

Retrofitting all flourescent lighting to LED, tubes and ballasts. (Permit fees doubled, work star $50,000.00 $200.00

7/6/2021 E-21-048 Dennis Duytschaver 808 S West

Upgrade from 60A to 100A service. $1,250.00 $50.00

7/8/2021 E-21-049 Swanson Electric 107 N Main

Replacing ceiling light fixtures, separating lighting circuits. $10,000.00 ($100.00)

7/15/2021 E-21-050 George Guzzardo 235 S Chestnut

Install underground electrical service from street by Ameren IP. $2,375.00 ($50.00)

7/29/2021 E-21-051 Tina Chamberlain 414 Hollis

Install new meter base. $1,000.00 ($50.00)

Wednesday, August 4, 2021 Page 1 of 2



Date Elec Permit# Permit Issued To Job Address

Job Descrip Est Cost Permit Fee

Total Value of Improvements $68,732.00

Total Value of Permit Fees waived for Enterprise Zone
($200.00)

Total Value of other Permit Fees $300.00

Value of improvements in Enterprise Zone $13,375.00

Value of improvements outside the Enterprise Zone $55,357.00

Prepared by: ________________________

Wednesday, August 4, 2021 Page 2 of 2



   Plumbing Permits July 2021

Health - Building - Zoning

Date Plumb Permit Permit Issued To Job Address

Job Descrip Est Cost Permit Fee

7/8/2021 P-21-066 Ed's Htg, AC, Plmbg & Elec., Inc. 1126 W Mill, Apt #4

Install one new AO Smith natural gas power vent water heater. $1,615.92 ($50.00)

7/9/2021 P-21-067 Ed's Htg, AC, Plmbg & Elec., Inc. 427 E Garfield

Install one new A.O. Smith 40 gallon natural gas water heater. $1,021.12 $16.30

7/19/2021 P-21-068 Ed's Htg, AC, Plmbg & Elec., Inc. 500 S Main

Install one ne A.O Smith 40 gallon natural gas water heater. $1,550.00 ($16.30)

Total Value of Improvements $4,187.04

Total Value of Permit Fees waived for Enterprise Zone
($66.30)

Total Value of other Permit Fees $16.30

Value of improvements in Enterprise Zone $3,165.92

Value of improvements outside the Enterprise Zone $1,021.12

Prepared by: _____________________

Wednesday, August 4, 2021 Page 1 of 1





Miscellaneous Permits July 2021

 Health - Building - Zoning

Date Misc Permit# Permit Issued To Job Address

Job Descrip Est Cost Permit Fee

7/28/2021 M-21-012 Chad Lucas 1408 W Prospect

Demolition of garage. $1,000.00 $25.00

Total Value of Improvements $1,000.00

Total Value of Permit Fees waived for Enterprise Zone
$0.00

Total Value of other Permit Fees $25.00

Value of improvements in Enterprise Zone $0.00

Value of improvements outside the Enterprise Zone $1,000.00

Prepared by: _____________________

Wednesday, August 4, 2021 Page 1 of 1





  Item C 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 9, 2021 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution #5288 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of Resolution # 5288 to approve an 
application for the City’s Infill Development Program. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Administration 

PRESENTER Gary Bradley, City Manager 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$2,500+ 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE Authorizes the award of funds to assist with the 
construction of a new home.   

BACKGROUND The City established this incentive program to serve 
as a catalyst for the construction of homes on lots 
that had previously held residences, the idea being to 
fill in some of the empty gaps in block fronts, restore 
EAV, and leverage our funds with private capital for 
reinvestment in neighborhoods as part of a long-term 
strategy for economic development.  Since it’s 
inception, the project has not yet been used and was 
defunded in the budget, despite the availability of 
funds and the proven benefit of similar programs 
across the country.  The City’s investment would be 
recouped within a few years and provides for growth 
in the EAV of not just the City but also in the other 
taxing jurisdictions that we typically consider to be 
our partners.   



  Item C 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS Infill development is a successful strategy because it 
makes use of infrastructure that already exists; 
streets that are already built and maintained, water 
and sewer lines that are in place and running past 
vacant lots.  Reinvestment in the neighborhood 
typically serves as a catalyst for other renovation and 
rehabilitation projects or additional infill development 
projects.   

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends approval 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

N/A 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Infill Development Program Application 

 



KEWANEE 
i l. 1. l N \) l ,·

City of Kewanee Infill Development Program 

J�0
t

jZ/I� 5/ &wcv1e e
Date of Request 

Home Address (Streetmtate, Zip) 

Wcs\e\e,c '0\-\\�e 1;: S

Phone 

Business Name (if applicable) Business or Alternate Phone 

Project Address Email 

Financial lnfonnation 1 ; 
dTotal Estimated Cost of Project 90 - CJ() .J/7@6(), r1 

Sources of funding (list all that apply)
/--

/ >f '2() 0 Owner/Builder Equity S to_ - egt.1,p,ne 11 - o 1tJO 
Banl<jCredit Union Financing S�.:i:;=f�:/,�'/1'/�// _____ _ 
Grant Funding $, ________ _ 
Other,_ ______ ) $ ________ _ 
Bulldlng Information 
so. Ft f/oce !hen /�oo 

Bedrooms,---'◊=-----
Bathrooms,_�J,�----
Stories...,,,.-'/ _____ _ 
Style "1<a11c "

Anticipated schedule: 

' 

Date __________ _ 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 5288 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE AND 
PREPARE DOCUMENTS THAT ARE NECESSARY TO AMEND THE BUDGET 
AND PROGRAM DOCUMENTS THAT ARE NECESSARY TO MAKE THE 
PROGRAM EFFECTIVE.    

WHEREAS, the City of Kewanee recognizes the importance of Infill Development as an 
economic development strategy the builds the tax base of affected taxing 
jurisdictions; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Kewanee has established an infill development grant program but 
has opted not to fund it over the past few years; and  

WHEREAS, the program is of no consequences if it exists but has no funding; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Kewanee received an application for funding under the program but 
cannot act on it without council authorization and direction.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF KEWANEE 
THAT: 

Section 1 The City Manager  is hereby authorized to approve application that have been or 
may be submitted and is directed to prepare budget amendments in order to 
enable the same.   

Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage 
and approval as provided by law. 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 9th day of August, 2021. 
 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Gary Moore     

Councilmember Michael Komnick     
Councilmember Steve Faber     

Councilmember Chris Colomer     
Councilmember Tyrone Baker     



  Item D 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 9, 2021 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Resolution # 5289 

AGENDA TITLE Resolution authorizing the City Manager or his 
designee to execute documents that are necessary 
for the acquisition and financing of a new ambulance. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Fire 

PRESENTER Chief Shook 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

$75,000 down payment 
$235,643 total 

Budget Line Item: 01-22-999 Rolling stock Fire 
Department 

Balance Available $91,589.22 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 
Financing Required 

PURPOSE Provides authorization to order the production and 
purchase of a new ambulance.   



  Item D 

BACKGROUND The Fire Department operates 3 ambulances with an 
average of over 2000 calls per year. These calls for 
service generate revenues of $500,000 - $600,000 
annually directly through patient/insurance billing for 
services. The department’s fleet consists of one Ford 
450 that is 11 years old and two International 4500s 
that are 10-11 years old. The Internationals were 
purchased used from Byron Fire Department in 2017 
to replace 2001 and 2005 models. Lifespan of an 
ambulance based on usage hours is 7-10 years as 
primary response vehicle. Kewanee traditionally has 
prolonged usage up to as many as 18 years. With an 
aging fleet that is beyond its life expectancy, these 
older ambulances need to be repaired frequently. 
Due to supply shortages and extended chassis 
deliveries the build and delivery times of new 
ambulances are up to a year from order to delivery. 
This in turn has also affected the used ambulance 
market with few on the market that are less than 10 
years old. 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS A panel of five staff members evaluated responses 
from five companies and found the recommended 
model to be the best value for the City’s investment.   

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

The RFP and response evaluation were in 
accordance with the procurement policy.   

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

Proposed Ambulance Information 

 



 
 
  

 

 
 

7/28/2021                               Proposed Ambulance Information 
 
The ambulance being proposed is a “Osage” brand vendored by North Central Emergency 
Vehicles. North Central EV is in Plainfield Illinois and has a shop and staff on hand to do 
warranty work at that location. The Osage factory is located in Osage County, Missouri. 
 

• The ambulance would be built on a 2022 ford 550 chassis 4x4 Type 1 
• The ambulance module is 172 inches in length with the side access door in the forward 

position. (2 inches longer than other bids received) 
• Interior head room is 74 inches (2 inches taller than other bids) 
• Patient aisle of 49.75 inches (2 inches wider than other bids) 
• Interior cabinet materials will be aluminum. (Other bids were for wooden cabinets) 

 
A few of the Illinois entities that have this brand are: 
Ottawa FD                   4 ambulances of this brand 
Princeton FD               3  
OSWEGO FPD             3 
Bartlett FD                   2 
Gibson City Hospital  2  
Romeoville FD            1 
North Palos FPD         4 plus 2 remounts 
A 3-page list of references all located in Illinois was supplied with the response. 
 

 

Kewanee Fire Department 
Kevin Shook 
Fire Chief 
401 East 3rd St.  
Kewanee, Il 61443 
Phone 309-852-2115 
kshook@cityofkewanee.net 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 5289 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR HIS DESIGNEE TO 
EXECUTE DOCUMENTS THAT ARE NECESSARY FOR THE ACQUISITION 
AND FINANCING OF A NEW AMBULANCE.   

WHEREAS, the City of Kewanee recognizes that emergency services is an important part of 
maintaining a healthy and safe community; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Kewanee is responsible for emergency medical services for the 
residents and businesses of Kewanee; and  

WHEREAS, The City of Kewanee is in need of a new ambulance to maintain service; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Kewanee issued a request for proposals and evaluated responses in 
accordance with the City’s procurement policy; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF KEWANEE 
THAT: 

Section 1 The City Manager or his designee to execute documents that are 
necessary for the acquisition and financing of a new ambulance. 

Section 2 This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage 
and approval as provided by law. 

Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 9th day of August, 2021. 
 
ATTEST:   
   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 

RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 
Mayor Gary Moore     

Councilmember Michael Komnick     
Councilmember Steve Faber     

Councilmember Chris Colomer     
Councilmember Tyrone Baker     



   
 

Item E 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 9, 2021 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance #4066 
 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of an ordinance amending Sections 
155.070 (B) Special Uses AND 155.071 (B) Special 
Uses. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A, including recurring 
charges 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To establish Cannabis Cultivation Center and 
Cannabis Craft Grower as Special Uses in 
Manufacturing Districts.   

BACKGROUND The City previously established these uses in the 
definitions; however we did not place there use into 
the necessary districts.  This simply adds the uses 
into the code for any potential future business. 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS Review of other model ordinances, including one 
from the IML, these uses seem to fit best within 
Manufacturing Districts.   



   
 

Item E 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends passing the ordinance. 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

 

 



ORDINANCE # 4066 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 155.070 (B) SPECIAL USES AND 155.071 (B) SPECIAL USES 
ESTABLISHED IN THE CITY OF KEWANEE CODE OF ORDINANCES, AND DECLARING THAT THIS 

IS ORDINANCE IS IN FULL FORCE AS PROVIDED BY LAW. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City of Kewanee has previously established permitted special uses in M-1 

Manufacturing District – Limited & M-2 Manufacturing District - General; and  

WHEREAS,  The State of Illinois enacted the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act (Act), which 
pertains to the possession, use, cultivation, transportation and dispensing of adult-
use cannabis, which became effective June 25, 2019; and 

WHEREAS,  Pursuant to the Act, the City may enact reasonable zoning ordinances or 
resolutions not in conflict with the Act, regulating cannabis business 
establishments, including rules adopted governing the time, place, manner and 
number of cannabis business establishments, and minimum distance limitations 
between cannabis business establishments and locations the City deems sensitive; 
and 

WHEREAS, The City Council has found that adding Cannabis Cultivation Center as a 
permitted special use is needed.  

WHEREAS, The City Council has found that adding Cannabis Craft Grower as a permitted 
special use is needed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
KEWANEE, ILLINOIS, IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
Section 1 The City Council hereby amends Chapter 155.070(B) of the City Code by 

inserting text shown as underlined and omitting text shown as strikethrough as 
follows: 

  
§ 155.070  M-1 MANUFACTURING DISTRICT, LIMITED. 

(B) Special uses.  The following uses may be allowed by special use permit per the 
provisions of §§ 155.155 through 155.157.  
(13) Cannabis Cultivation Center.  Cannabis Cultivation Centers shall not be 

located within 750 feet of the property line of a School, Church, Licensed 
Daycare Center, Nursery School, Park, Sheltered care or board and care 
facility, Penal or correctional institutions, Hospitals or sanitariums, public 
or private, Municipal or privately owned recreation building, or any other 
use deemed necessary by the Planning Commission and City Council. The 
hours of operation shall be determined as a part of the conditions under 
which the special use is granted. The consumption of all cannabis and 
cannabis infused products, on the Cannabis Cultavation Center site, shall 
be prohibited.  Cannabis Cultavation Centers shall comply with all other 
City and State Laws.   



(14) Cannabis Craft Grower.  Cannabis Craft Growers shall not be located 
within 750 feet of the property line of a School, Church, Licensed Daycare 
Center, Nursery School, Park, Sheltered care or board and care facility, 
Penal or correctional institutions, Hospitals or sanitariums, public or 
private, Municipal or privately owned recreation building, or any other use 
deemed necessary by the Planning Commission and City Council. The 
hours of operation shall be determined as a part of the conditions under 
which the special use is granted. The consumption of all cannabis and 
cannabis infused products, on the Cannabis Craft Grower site, shall be 
prohibited.  Cannabis Craft Growers shall comply with all other City and 
State Laws.   

 
Section 2 The City Council hereby amends Chapter 155.071(B) of the City Code by 

inserting text shown as underlined and omitting text shown as strikethrough as 
follows: 

  
§ 155.071  M-2 MANUFACTURING DISTRICT, GENERAL. 

(B) Special uses.  The following uses may be allowed by special use permit per the 
provisions of §§ 155.155 through 155.157.  
(7) Cannabis Cultivation Center.  Cannabis Cultivation Centers shall not be 

located within 750 feet of the property line of a School, Church, Licensed 
Daycare Center, Nursery School, Park, Sheltered care or board and care 
facility, Penal or correctional institutions, Hospitals or sanitariums, public 
or private, Municipal or privately owned recreation building, or any other 
use deemed necessary by the Planning Commission and City Council. The 
hours of operation shall be determined as a part of the conditions under 
which the special use is granted. The consumption of all cannabis and 
cannabis infused products, on the Cannabis Cultavation Center site, shall 
be prohibited.  Cannabis Cultavation Centers shall comply with all other 
City and State Laws.   

(8) Cannabis Craft Grower.  Cannabis Craft Growers shall not be located 
within 750 feet of the property line of a School, Church, Licensed Daycare 
Center, Nursery School, Park, Sheltered care or board and care facility, 
Penal or correctional institutions, Hospitals or sanitariums, public or 
private, Municipal or privately owned recreation building, or any other use 
deemed necessary by the Planning Commission and City Council. The 
hours of operation shall be determined as a part of the conditions under 
which the special use is granted. The consumption of all cannabis and 
cannabis infused products, on the Cannabis Craft Grower site, shall be 
prohibited.  Cannabis Craft Growers shall comply with all other City and 
State Laws.   

  
Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 9th day of August 
2021. 
ATTEST:   
   



   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Michael Komnick     

Council Member Chris Colomer     
Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Tyrone Baker     



  ITEM F 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 9, 2021 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Ordinance # 4067 

AGENDA TITLE Consideration of an ordinance amending Sections 
155.066 (A) Permitted Uses AND 155.070 (A) 
Permitted Uses. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A, including recurring 
charges 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To update the permitted uses in Business and 
Manufacturing Districts to allow for Planned 
Developments.   

BACKGROUND The City previously established the use in the 
definitions; however we did not place the use into all 
the necessary districts.  This simply adds the use into 
the code for any potential planned developments. 

SPECIAL NOTES N/A 

ANALYSIS  

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

 

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     



  ITEM F 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends passing the ordinance. 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

 

 



ORDINANCE #4067 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 155.066 (A) PERMITTED USES ESTABLISHED IN THE CITY 
OF KEWANEE CODE OF ORDINANCES, SECTION 155.070 (A) PERMITTED USES ESTABLISHED IN 
THE CITY OF KEWANEE CODE OF ORDINANCES, AND  DECLARING THAT THIS IS ORDINANCE IS 

IN FULL FORCE AS PROVIDED BY LAW. 
 
WHEREAS,  The City of Kewanee has previously established permitted uses in B-1 Business 

District – Limited Retail; and  

WHEREAS, The City Council has previously established the definition for Planned 
Development within the existing Zoning Code; and  

WHEREAS, The City Council has found that adding Planned Development permitted use 
within Business Zoned Districts is needed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
KEWANEE, ILLINOIS, IN COUNCIL ASSEMBLED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
Section 1 The City Council hereby amends Chapter 155.066(A) of the City Code by 

inserting text shown as underlined and omitting text shown as strikethrough as 
follows: 

  
§ 155.066  B-1 BUSINESS DISTRICT, LIMITED RETAIL. 

(A) Permitted uses.   
(80) Planned developments, as defined in § 155.003.   
 

Section 2 The City Council hereby amends Chapter 155.070(A) of the City Code by 
inserting text shown as underlined and omitting text shown as strikethrough as 
follows: 

  
§ 155.070  M-1 MANUFACTURING DISTRICT, LIMITED. 

(A) Permitted uses.   
(59) Planned developments, as defined in § 155.003.   
 

Section 3 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and 
approval as provided by law. 

 
Adopted by the Council of the City of Kewanee, Illinois this 9th day of August 2021. 

ATTEST:   
   
   
Rabecka Jones, City Clerk  Gary Moore, Mayor 

 
 
 



 
 RECORD OF THE VOTE Yes No Abstain Absent 

Mayor Gary Moore     
Council Member Michael Komnick     

Council Member Chris Colomer     
Council Member Steve Faber     

Council Member Tyrone Baker     































































  ITEM H 

CITY OF KEWANEE 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE August 9, 2021 

RESOLUTION OR 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 

Discussion Only 

AGENDA TITLE Discussion concerning current shallow foundations 
allowed for accessory structures and potential 
increase in size. 

REQUESTING 
DEPARTMENT 

Community Development 

PRESENTER Keith Edwards, Director of Community Development 

FISCAL INFORMATION Cost as 
recommended: 

N/A 

Budget Line Item: N/A 

Balance Available N/A 

New Appropriation 
Required: 

[ ] Yes  [X] No 

PURPOSE To increase the allowed size of shallow foundations 
for accessory structures.   

BACKGROUND Recently I applied for a variance to the current 
ordinance that allows a slab/shallow foundation of a 
maximum size of 720 square feet for a residential 
garage.  In my research I found that the City of 
Galesburg allows up to 1000 square feet on a 
shallow foundation with an 8” by 8” curb footing and 
two #3 rebar in the curb footing (same as our code 
for 720 sq ft).  Cedar Rapids Ia. Allows up to 1250 
with a 12” by 12” curb footing.  I have had 
discussions with the Iowa Illinois Building Officials 
Association on this topic.  Several municipalities are 
considering increasing the size for shallow 
foundations as well.   



  ITEM H 

SPECIAL NOTES If we were to allow for larger garages without 
requiring frost free footings, there will need to be 
some stipulations such as: 
• Residential use only 
• Not attached to any other structure 
• No plumbing 
• No second floor 
• No previous building on the site 
• No living quarters – no life safety concerns 
• Minimal fill (current code allows up to 18 
inches) – any fill brought in must be properly 
compacted  
• Slab must be a monolithic pour 
•• 12” curb footing will contain no less than two 
#4 bars 

ANALYSIS By increasing this allowable square footage for 
shallow foundations, it would lower the costs of 
building supplies making it easier for residents to 
build the garage they desire.   
IRC Section R403.1.4.1 does make reference to 
document 3201 from the American Society of Civil 
Engineers titled Design and Construction of Frost-
Protected Shallow Foundations.  This reference from 
the IRC makes suggestions for protecting shallow 
foundations by heating and/or insulating the 
foundation.  I would suggest leaving this as an option 
for the resident to decide but not a requirement. 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 
PROCESS 

N/A     

BOARD OR COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION 

N/A     



  ITEM H 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION Staff requests direction whether or not to move 
forward with changing the current ordinance.  Staff 
recommends changing the current ordinance to 
similar size and requirements as Cedar Rapids. 
1200 sq ft 
12” x 12” curb footing with 2 #4 rebar 
Residential use only 
Not attached to any other structure 
No plumbing 
No second floor 
No previous building on the site 
No living quarters – no life safety concerns 
Minimal fill (current code allows up to 18 inches) – 
any fill brought in must be properly compacted  
Slab must be a monolithic pour 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 
VERIFICATION 

N/A     

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
ATTACHED 

N/A     

 


	Agenda 08-09-2021
	Monday, August 9th, 2021

	CM Memo 08-09-21
	Kewanee DT TIF 1st Amend JRB Report
	IEPA Inspection Letter (after JRB Report)
	Minutes for 07-26-21
	WARRANT LIST 0809
	NRWIN (T15)[20210806-1053484].pdf
	NRWIN (T15)[20210806-1053303].pdf
	NRWIN (T15)[20210806-1053142].pdf
	NRWIN (T15)[20210806-1052481].pdf

	Building July 21
	Elec July 21
	Plumbing July 21
	Misc July 21
	RES 5288 Staff Report -Infill Development
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	RES 5288 Completed IHDG Application
	Res 5288  IDHG
	RES 5289 Staff Report -Ambulance
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	RES 5289 Proposed Ambulance Information
	Res 5289  Ambulance
	ORD 4066 Staff Report - Cannabis Cultivation Center & Craft Grower Amendments
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Ord 4066 Cannabis Cultivation Center & Craft Grower Amendment
	ORD 4067 Staff Report - Planned Development Amendments
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE

	Ord 4067 Planned Development Amendment
	Electric Car Charging Information
	Electric Car Charging Information (3)
	Electric Car Charging Information (2)
	Staff Report - Discussion Shallow Foundations
	CITY OF KEWANEE
	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
	MEETING DATE


